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The Professionalisation of the Learning and Skills Sector
Introduction

This report has been based on 70 responses to the consultation document. 
As some respondents may have offered a number of options for questions, total percentages listed under any one question may exceed 100%.  Throughout the report, percentages are expressed as a measure of those answering each question, not as a measure of all respondents.  
The breakdown of respondents was as follows:

Teacher



24

Senior Manager


15

Representative body

  9

Other*




  8
Union




  8

National partner agency

  5

Vice principal
 

 
  1

*Those which fell into the ‘other’ category included local authority workers, consultants and anonymous responses. 
The organisational breakdown of respondents was as follows:

General FE college


26

National partner agency

  9

Other*




  9

Union




  8

Voluntary or community adult 

and community learning provider    5

Work-based learning provider
  5

HEI




  4

Local education authority adult

and community learning provider   3

Specialist College

             1

*Those which fell into the other category included the Learning and Skills Council, the Catholic Education Service and Sector Skills Councils.

The report starts with an overview, followed by a summary analysis of each question within the consultation. 

Annex A provides a statistical analysis of responses by respondent ‘type’.  

Annex A1 breaks it down by respondent ‘type’ and Annex A2 breaks it down by organisational ‘type’.
Overview
Initial Teacher Training (ITT)
Overall, a small majority of respondents thought the introduction of regulations could discourage movement into the sector.  It was suggested that without having comparable remuneration with the other education sectors and industry people would not want to gain qualifications.  
Respondents considered that the suggested timescales of September 2007 were very tight in order for the regulations to be brought in smoothly and successfully.  It was suggested that 2008 would be a more realistic start date.  It was also emphasised that adequate levels of funding would be needed.  
The vast majority of respondents considered that if the individual was employed by an organisation it was the organisation’s responsibility to pay for the training and qualifications. 
Principal Qualification

Overall, a small majority of respondents thought the introduction of regulations for Principals would encourage movement of people into the sector.  It was said that it would ensure that people who became principals would have the necessary skills for the post.  It was also suggested that the qualification would need to be linked to pay.
Respondents wanted the Government and its partner agencies to provide regular information updates to all those involved.  It was stated that this was essential to ensure that everyone was aware of timescales and any slippages.  It was considered that there should be plenty of opportunity for consultation and open discussion.
The majority of respondents, again, considered that if the individual was employed it should be the organisation who should pay for the qualification.
Continuous Professional Development (CPD)

Most respondents thought that the introduction of regulations for CPD in FE colleges would result in wider benefits across the learning and skills sector.

Respondents considered that in order to support colleges the Government and its partner agencies would need to provide clear guidelines, adequate funding and make sure there was as little bureaucracy involved as possible.  
The vast majority of respondents were of the opinion that a CPD requirement should be extended to include managers and leaders.  It was stated that they also need to be trained and should keep their skills and knowledge up to date.

A small majority of respondents were of the opinion that it should be the individuals responsibility to register with a professional body for the sector, stating that it would be they who most benefited.  It was also said that this was what happened in other sectors.

Summary
1 
We intend to bring regulations into force for teachers from 1st 
September 2007. What needs to be done by Government and 
partner agencies to ensure this happens? Do you foresee any 
obstacles? How can they be overcome?
There were 45 responses to this question.

17 (38%) respondents were of the opinion that a sufficient timescale needed to be in place for the regulations to be successful.  There were concerns surrounding the suggested timescale of September 2007.  It was said that in order to devise a framework, take into account slippages and problems that could arise, publicise the changes and allow providers and staff time to affect those changes a start date of September 2008 would be more realistic.  
16 (36%) considered that the Government and partner agencies would need to provide adequate funding.  It was also stated that funding streams would have to be made clear and easy to access.  Funding would be required for staff and institutions to support mentoring and coaching and in order to allow time for staff to attend training.  

12 (27%) stated that in order to ensure the regulations were brought into force successfully clear information was required.  It was remarked that ‘a good communications strategy that informs all in the sector of what is to happen’ was required.  It was stated that one of ‘the main obstacles to implementation will be insufficient understanding by institutions and staff of how the regulations will be implemented’.  It was also said that regular bulletins and updates needed to be given to all stakeholders, including updates on the timetables.
11 (24%) respondents said that all staff had to have sufficient time to complete their continuous professional development (CPD).  It was stated that at the moment staff simply did not have the time to undertake CPD activities and if this initiative was to succeed this would have to change.
2 
How do you think the introduction of regulations will affect the 
movement of people into teaching jobs in the sector?
There were 60 responses to this question.

23 (38%) discourage movement into the sector

17 (28%) encourage movement into the sector

16 (27%) not sure
4 (7%) no effect on movement

21 (35%) respondents said that in order for the introduction to have an affect on the movement of people into teaching jobs in the sector, pay and conditions would need to be improved and comparable to those in the other education sectors and industry.
15 (25%) suggested that the introduction of regulations would lead to a more professional workforce.  It was considered that if the sector was perceived to have a high standard of requirements in much the same way as was said to exist in the other education sectors, vocational specialists would be encouraged to move into the sector.  It was also suggested that it could help to deter people from entering the profession who saw it as an easy option.
3 
How could the arrangements for teachers' qualifications be 
developed to encourage positive movement into the sector?
There were 40 responses to this question.

17 (43%) respondents stated that comparative remuneration would be needed in order for the arrangements for teachers’ qualifications to be developed to encourage positive movement into the sector.  In conjunction with this, 6 (15%) said that the system of Golden Hellos that had been introduced previously into the sector for new Further Education (FE) teachers had been a popular incentive but needed to be opened up to allow more people to benefit.
11 (28%) considered that qualifications needed to be transferable.  It was stated that a number of qualifications were not recognised by different authorities which made it difficult when transferring between institutions.  It was also stated that qualifications for FE teachers needed to be regarded with the same esteem as those in other education sectors.
8 (20%) respondents said that funding would need to be made available to encourage a positive movement into the sector.  There were a number of reasons given for which funding was needed.  These included capacity building and training.
4 (10%) suggested that a high profile publicity and marketing campaign would be needed.  One respondent considered that an approach similar to the ‘those who can teach’ campaign would be appropriate.

4 
What support, guidance or training do you think your organisation 
will need to implement the arrangements?
There were 38 responses to this question.

15 (39%) respondents were of the opinion that some form of mentoring scheme would need to be in place in order to implement the arrangements.  It was suggested that both subject specialist mentors and human resource mentors would be needed.
14 (37%) considered a need for clear written guidance.  It was stated that this needed to be easily accessible to all those who could be affected by the new proposals.  It was also stated that it needed to be easily updated.

11 (29%) said that financial support would be needed.  It was stated that this would be required to allow staff the time to undertake training and so that providers could fund mentoring support for candidates.  There were concerns around the funding of part time workers and how resources could be allocated.
9 (24%) considered that continuous and open communication channels would be needed in order to implement the arrangements.  Respondents considered that to ensure a smooth transition period staff would need to be made well aware of the changes, timescales and opportunities that would be available.  
It was also suggested that having a number of consultations would be helpful.
5 
How best can we introduce a probationary period linked to a 
formal induction programme as part of initial teacher training? Do 
you foresee any obstacles? How can they be overcome?
There were 29 responses to this question.

10 (34%) respondents stated they were in favour of a probationary period and suggested a one year timescale.  It was suggested that this should be along the lines of the Newly Qualified Teacher (NQT) scheme for school teachers.
5 (17%) said that staff should train whilst they were employed.  One respondent remarked that ‘any period of probation is difficult in that some trainee teachers have considerable teaching experience, many train 'in-service' and are, therefore, already employed in a full teaching capacity, some are entirely new to the sector - with supervised teaching practice being their only exposure to professional practice.’
Other issues and suggestions included:

· Timetabling concerns, e.g. staff appointments happen all year round
· Who would be responsible for monitoring and assessing the competency
· Probationary programmes need to be tailored to an individual’s requirements.

6 
What should the balance be between individuals and the 
organisation paying for training and qualifications?
There were 49 responses to this question.

31 (63%) respondents considered that if the individual was employed it should be the organisation that should pay for training and qualifications.

Other suggestions included:

· Some form of bursary system to help individuals to pay

· Individuals paying through a Graduate Tax scheme

· A variety of splits between the individual and the organisation.

7 
How can methods for ensuring compliance with the qualifications 
process work best?
There were 37 responses to this question.

16 (43%) respondents stated that having regular inspections would be the best method for ensuring compliance with the qualifications process.  It was suggested that OfSTED or the Adult Learning Inspectorate (ALI) could be responsible for carrying out the inspections.  It was also considered that both spot checks and notified inspections should take place.
11 (30%) respondents said that a system of monitoring should be in place.  One respondent remarked that it ‘should be quite intense at first because many will try to avoid this change’. It was suggested that the LSC would be the appropriate body to monitor compliance with the qualifications process.
Other issues and suggestions included:

· The need for funding

· Standardised guidelines on support for those involved

· The implementation of a unique registration number so that teachers changing institution can be tracked.

8 
What minimum quality criteria do you think should be required of 
HE providers of ITT? e.g. support for trainees, effective 
partnership development with FE providers, commitment to 
equality and diversity.
There were 36 responses to this question.

13 (36%) respondents considered that workplace support, including mentors and guidance packs would be required. 
9 (25%) said that Higher Education (HE) providers of ITT needed to forge effective partnerships with FE providers.  It was stated that any partnerships needed to be supported by clear written transparent contracts and procedures.  There was, however, a question as to why only HE providers were referred to.

9 
What else can Government and partner agencies (e.g. LLUK, CEL, 
QIA) do to ensure effective implementation of the policy for initial 
teacher training?
There were 34 responses to this question.

16 (47%) respondents stated that in order to ensure effective implementation of the policy for initial teacher training Government and partner agencies would need to provide adequate funding.  Respondents considered that plans should be published as to how resources were to be allocated and how providers could access funding.
11 (32%) said that a successful working partnership between the Government and its partner agencies needed to be created.

6 (18%) considered that open and two way communication was vital to ensure effective implementation of the policy for ITT.

10 
How do you think the introduction of regulations for Principals 
will affect movement of people into the sector?
There were 43 responses to this question.

19 (44%) encourage movement into the sector

14 (33%) no effect on movement

10 (23%) discourage movement

There were no emerging issues to this question. 
11 
How could the requirement to be qualified be promoted to 
encourage positive movement towards Principal posts?
There were 28 responses to this question.
9 (32%) respondents were of the opinion that the requirement to be qualified could be promoted to encourage positive movement towards Principal posts by demonstrating that principals would gain the necessary skills needed for the position.  It was said that it could give staff more confidence in the principal’s ability to lead.
5 (18%) suggested that it could be promoted by linking achievement of the qualification to salaries.
Other suggestions included:

· Offer the qualification for free

· Communicate the benefits and application process.
12 
How can greater equality and diversity in leadership be 
encouraged?
There were 26 responses to this question.
7 (27%) respondents considered that promotion of role models would be a way of encouraging greater equality and diversity.

5 (19%) said there were already effective strategies in place that could be built upon, one of which was the Black Leadership Initiative.  It was suggested that it would be beneficial to second people that had completed the initiative to be mentors and trainers to enhance further development.

4 (15%) stated that targeted marketing would be needed to encourage applications and expressions of interest.  

3 (12%) thought that statistics regarding ethnicity, age, gender and disability should be made publicly available.  One respondent remarked that ‘there needs to be monitoring of entry and achievement data to establish whether the qualification is going to lead to greater equality and diversity of future Principals.  The tracking of the careers of those graduating from the qualification would also be useful data to evidence the qualification’s effectiveness.’

13 
We intend to bring regulations into force from 1st September 
2007. What can Government and partner agencies do to support 
colleges leading up to the introduction?
There were 30 responses to this question.

21 (70%) respondents expressed that Government and its partner agencies would need to provide clear and timely information to support colleges leading up to the introduction.  It was suggested this could include regular consultation, working groups and information exchanges.
6 (20%) said that funding needed to be made available.  It was stated that ‘leadership and management training is not cheap and the opportunities afforded to staff aspiring to these positions must not be at the expense of the training and support for other staff’.
5 (17%) were of the opinion that there needed to be a long run in time.  It was also said that timetabling issues such as term times needed to be taken into consideration.
14 
How do we ensure that those candidates already holding the 
qualification and those just enrolled on the course are equally 
recognised (e.g. those from within the sector and those coming in 
from elsewhere)?
There were 20 responses to this question.

6 (30%) considered that existing qualifications should be validated and recognised throughout the country, not just the relevant sector.  It was suggested that the qualification should be composed of modules and units with values for each unit.  It was said that this could ‘facilitate both accreditation of prior experience and learning, and discontinuous learning which is likely to be a frequently used mode of learning for many.  It [would] also mean that those from outside the sector can receive due recognition for management and leadership learning from outside the sector.’
Other suggestions included:

· The establishment of a central body to hold and vet records

· Monitoring

· Link the qualification to salaries

15 
How can methods for ensuring compliance with the qualification 
process work best?
There were 18 responses to this question.

7 (39%) respondents stated that in order to ensure compliance to the qualification process works, a system of monitoring and inspection would need to be in place.  Bodies that were suggested that should be involved included OfSTED, the Learning and Skills Council (LSC), Lifelong Learning UK (LLUK), and the Quality Improvement Agency (QIA).

Suggestions for other methods included:
· Minimise bureaucracy

· Flexibility

· Financial penalties
16 
What should the balance be between individuals and the 
organisation paying for the qualification?
There were 28 responses to this question.

15 (54%) respondents were of the opinion that if they were employed the organisation should pay for the qualification.

5 (18%) considered that it should be the individual who should pay for the qualification.  It was suggested that if the institution funded the qualification they would be unlikely to benefit from the achievement as most people would find a post elsewhere.

3 (11%) said that if the individual was to pay there would need to be an increase in their salary to cover the costs.

17 
What else can Government and partner agencies (e.g. CEL, LLUK, 
QIA) do to ensure effective implementation of this policy?
There were 14 responses to this question.

6 (43%) respondents said that to ensure effective implementation of this policy adequate funding would be needed.
Other suggestions included:

· Marketing campaigns

· Co-ordination of agencies and lessons they have learned
18 
We intend to bring regulations into force from 1st September 
2007. What can Government and partner agencies do to support 
colleges leading up to the introduction?
There were 37 responses to this question.

19 (51%) respondents said that to support colleges leading up to the introduction Government and its partner agencies would need to provide clear guidelines.  Particular reference was made to clear definitions of what constitutes continuous professional development (CPD) and how much time should be given to it.
9 (24%) said funding needed to be made available to allow for all aspects of practical teaching and workplace support.  It was also suggested that funding should be ring-fenced and would need to be audited and this could be done through the inspection process. 
9 (24%) respondents stated that bureaucracy would need to be kept to a minimum.

7 (19%) suggested that publicity would be needed.  It was considered that an awareness raising campaign for staff stressing the positives.  These included professionalisation of the sector, career and personal development and an opportunity to refresh teaching.  It was also stated that some form of debate and consultation would need to take place in order for people to voice their concerns.
19 
Are the methods for ensuring compliance sufficient to ensure 
effective implementation?
There were 43 responses to this question.

11 (26%) yes


8 (19%) no

24 (56%) don’t know

There were no key issues to this question.  

20 
All teachers will be required to register with a professional body 
for the sector. Who should pay for the annual registration fee? 
What obstacles are there to registration? How can they be 
overcome?
There were 49 responses to this question.
17 (35%) respondents suggested the individual should be responsible for paying for the annual registration fee as it was considered that they would be the ones to benefit most.

13 (27%) considered that it should be the organisation who should pay.
7 (14%) said that there should be a 50/50 split between the organisation and the individual.

3 (6%) respondents suggested that salaries would need to be increased to cover the registration fees.
3 (6%) stated that the registration fee should be tax deductable.
21 
Do you agree that a CPD requirement should, in the future, be 
extended to include managers and leaders in the sector?
There were 56 responses to this question.

51 (19%) yes


1 (2%) no

4 (7%) don’t know

13 (23%) respondents emphasised that the CPD requirement should be extended to include managers and leaders saying that managers required training.  It was also said that this would provide them with the opportunity to keep their skills and knowledge up to date.
22 
What should the arrangements be for part time staff?
There were 55 responses to this question.

39 (71%) proportionate amount of CPD
10 (18%) full amount of CPD
4 (7%) different minimum level

2 (4%) other

23 
What else can Government and partner agencies (e.g. LLUK, QIA, 
CEL) do to ensure effective implementation of this policy?
There were 28 responses to this question.

7 (25%) respondents considered that Government and its partner agencies could develop standards in order to ensure effective implementation of this policy.  It was said that standards would need to provide clarity about the roles within CPD and what could constitute it.
5 (18%) said that funding would need to be provided.

3 (11%) suggested that the Government and its partner agencies should monitor the implementation of the policy and how it proceeded.
24 
Could the introduction of regulations in FE Colleges result in 
wider benefits across the learning and skills sector?
There were 52 responses to this question.

37 (71%) yes


4 (8%) no

11 (21%) don’t know

25
 How can requirements best benefit the work-based learning and 
adult and community learning sectors?
There were 26 responses to this question.

14 (54%) respondents said that the requirements could best benefit the work-based learning and community learning sectors by increasing professionalisation.  It was considered that there would be an increase in consistency and could appear to be a more attractive career path.
26 
Are there any other problems we might encounter? How could 
they be overcome?
There were 22 responses to this question.

There were no key issues to this question. 

27
What is the best way of supporting the changes in these sectors 
(e.g. through LSC funding, inspection)?
There were 33 responses to this question.

26 (79%) respondents considered the best way of supporting the changes in these sectors was to provide adequate funding.
28 
Any other comments are very welcome.
There were no key issues arising from this question.

